# FORMER KAMAROOKA ROAD SCHOOL (NEILBOROUGH NORTH) NO.1726



Standard timber school room and porch with capacity for 40 pupils designed in 1872. The picture is not dated, and the school room is not named.



North elevation of the Former Kamarooka Road School.



North and west elevations, note sugar gums at rear.



Rear (south) elevation.



West elevation, note partially detached entrance porch.

#### Location

CA 5A ELMORE-RAYWOOD ROAD, NEILBOROUGH - PROPERTY NUMBER 198958, GREATER BENDIGO CITY

# Municipality

**GREATER BENDIGO CITY** 

## Level of significance

Included in Heritage Overlay

## **Heritage Overlay Numbers**

HO575

## **Heritage Listing**

### Statement of Significance

Last updated on - August 20, 2023

#### What is significant?

The former Kamarooka Road School (Neilborough North School) no. 1726 is a small and simply detailed timber building, and a surviving example of a once common standard school building design drawn up by the Colonial Architects in 1872. It is a remnant of the settlement of Summerfield, an agricultural community established in the 1860s located in open, gently undulating farmland approximately 8km east of Raywood. As well as the single-storey gabled timber building with attached porch and lean-to quarters, the site includes vestiges of a wind break to the north-east, south-east and south-west boundaries of the reserve. Extant elements include the corbelled brick chimney, gable vents, finials, six-pane sash windows and steeply pitched roof.

#### How is it significant?

The former Kamarooka Road School is of local historical and aesthetic/architectural significance.

#### Why is it significant?

The former Kamarooka Road School is historically significant (Criterion A) as the last surviving (former) public building in the settlement of Summerfield, a small isolated farming community once sufficiently large to warrant a school with a capacity for 40 pupils. Summerfield was first settled in the 1860s, and the school finally closed in 1955. Prior to the construction of the Summerfield church, in 1888, (now demolished), church services were also held at the Kamarooka Road School.

The former school is also significant (Criterion B) for being a rare surviving example of a standard timber school and basic quarters, with capacity for 40 pupils, dating to the 1870s. The model was drawn up by the Colonial Architects in 1872, and in 1875 alone at least 75 were built across Victoria. No other examples of its type are known to survive in the Bendigo area, although further research is required to confirm this.

The former Kamarooka Road School no. 1726 is also of aesthetic/architectural significance (Criterion E). It is a small and simply detailed building, and a surviving example of a once common standard school building design of the 1870s. Although in poor condition, and with some structural problems, the school room, lean-to quarters and porch retain a comparatively high degree of intactness (i.e. have been only minimally modified) to the original design. The building has some picturesque qualities, due to the gabled form and steep roof pitch; and a high degree of visibility from Elmore-Raywood Road where it is seen in an open and informal landscape setting complemented by sugar gums to the east, south and west boundaries of the reserve, vestiges of an early wind break.

#### **Theme**

8. Building community life

Heritage Study/Consultant Greater Bendigo - Heritage Policy Citations Review, Lovell Chen P/L, 2011;

Construction dates 1876,

Architect/Designer Public Works Department,

Hermes Number 184954

Property Number

# **Physical Description 1**

undulating farmland approximately 8km east of Raywood. The single-storey gabled timber building is in the approximate centre of a large rectangular allotment on the south side of the Elmore-Raywood Road. The building is oriented north-west to south-east. As well as the timber school building, with attached porch and lean-to quarters, the site includes a concrete water tank. Sugar gums to the north-east, south-east and south-west boundaries of the reserve are vestiges of an early wind break. The property was not inspected internally. Descriptions of internal elements in the following derive from the 1998 survey.9

The school room, lean-to quarters and porch are clad in weatherboard fixed to a stud frame and raised on stumps. The school room and porch have gabled roofs, the quarters is a skillion. All roof areas are clad with corrugated galvanised sheet steel. However, the battens, exposed to the north end of the school room, suggest that the roof was originally shingle. The stumps of timber finals, at both ends of the school room roof, are extant. A rectangular brick chimney with corbelled cornice is located to the south-west side of the schoolroom. The school is entered by a door to the north-east of the porch. A second door, presumably to the quarters, is located to the south of the rear elevation of the school room. The window openings to the school room and porch appear to be in their original locations, and are double sashes hung with glazing bars to the sashes. Only the lower section of the window to the north-west (front) elevation of the school, next to the porch, has not been sheeted over. The two windows to the south-west wall of the quarters are of a later date. There a rectangular timber louvre vents, cambered at the top, to the front and rear gable ends of the school room. Inside, there is a fireplace, beaded timber linings, a coved ceiling with tie rods and diagonal braces.

The former school is in poor condition. The school room and quarters have subsided by several degrees, resulting in the base plate being twisted, and the porch has settled c. 3 or 4 degrees to the east, partially separating it from the north-west face of the school room, and pulling away seven courses of weatherboard. Two more courses of weatherboard have fallen off the north-west wall of the quarters, and there is some weatherboard damage above and below the gable vent on the north-west elevation. Roof sheeting at the north end of the south-west face of the school room is missing. Guttering is in place on each side of the classroom and quarters and is connected to a PVC downpipe on the north-east face of the school room. The chimney appears to be almost perpendicular, and the base plate and footings appear intact, with stumps sitting level on the entry side and fitted with intact steel ant caps. The weatherboard has not been painted for some decades. There are some signs of recent maintenance, including protective blue sheeting that has been fed into the open wall cavity between the porch and the main entry-side wall, below the opened roof area

The school building has a high degree of intactness in terms of its original design. However, this is tempered by extensive water damage, the twisting subsidence of the building frame and removal of areas of the weatherboard cladding to reveal the inner frame and walling.

This place/object may be included in the Victorian Heritage Register pursuant to the Heritage Act 2017. Check the Victorian Heritage Database, selecting 'Heritage Victoria' as the place source.

For further details about Heritage Overlay places, contact the relevant local council or go to Planning Schemes Online http://planningschemes.dpcd.vic.gov.au/